% o

\ 8
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Notice of a public
Decision Session - Executive Member for Transport

To: Councillor D'Agorne (Executive Member)

Date: Thursday, 19 September 2019

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: The Thornton Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G039)
AGENDA

Notice to Members — Post Decision Calling In:

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on this
agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by 4:00pm on
Monday 23 September 2019.

*With the exception of matters that have been the subject of a previous call
in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are not subject to the
call-in provisions. Any called in items will be considered by the Customer
and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management Committee.

Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on
Tuesday 17 September 2019.

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member is asked to declare:
e any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests
e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests
which he may have in respect of business on this agenda.

www.york.gov.uk



Public Participation

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have registered
to speak can do so. The deadline for registering is 5.00pm on
Wednesday 18 September 2019. Members of the public can speak
on agenda items or matters within the Executive Member’s remit.

To register to speak please contact the Democracy Officer for the
meeting, on the details at the foot of the agenda.

Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will be
filmed and webcast, or recorded, including any registered public
speakers who have given their permission. The broadcast can be
viewed at http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts or, if recorded, this will be
uploaded onto the Council’s website following the meeting.

Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors and
Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This includes the
use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting. Anyone wishing to film,
record or take photos at any public meeting should contact the
Democracy Officer (contact details are at the foot of this agenda) in
advance of the meeting.

The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a manner both
respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all those present. It can
be viewed at

https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol for webcasting
filming and recording of council meetings 20160809

Cycle Route Winter Treatment Pilot (Pages 1 - 32)
This report seeks to develop a pilot providing winter treatment on a
defined off adopted highway cycle route as part of the regular winter
treatments.


http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809

Hempland Avenue Speed Management Scheme (Pages 33 - 38)
- Update

This report summarises the results of consultation with regard the
speed management scheme at the junction of Hempland Avenue and
Hempland Lane and asks the Executive Member to decide how to
proceed with the scheme.

Residents Parking Petitions: Bishopthorpe (Pages 39 - 64)
Road (part), Rectory Gardens, Kilburn Road,
Wellington/Gordon/Willis/Wolsey Streets,

Longfield Terrace (part), Lower Ebor Street

(part) and the Revival Estate

To report the receipt of seven petitions and determine what action is
appropriate in each case.

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Executive Member considers urgent
under the Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer:

Michelle Bennett

Contact details:

. Telephone — (01904) 551573

. Email - michelle.bennett@york.gov.uk



For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak;

Business of the meeting;

Any special arrangements;

Copies of reports and;

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EMEASPNESIRHEESR (cantonese)
92 ST AR S SIFT > (qCS A1 | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze byC dostarczona w twoim

: (Polish)
wiasnym jezyku.

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
s U IS T, raw
T (01904) 551550




Page 1 Agenda Item 3

COUNCIL

a,

Decision Session — Executive Member for 19 September 2019
Transport

Report of Assistant Director Transport, Highways and Environment
Cycle Route Winter Treatment Pilot
Summary

1. This report seeks to develop a pilot providing winter treatment on a
defined off adopted highway cycle route as part of the regular winter
treatments.

2. The pilot will trial practical treatment options and establish a cost base
for further consideration by members as to whether to make a larger
cycle route treatment a permanent part of the council’s winter gritting
programme.

Recommendations
3. The Executive Member is asked to approve:

(i) Option 1: A limited pilot of winter treatment on cycle routes that
are not currently treated as per the map in Annex A.

(i) The reviewed winter maintenance plan as found in Annex B

Reason: To confirm the council’s formal winter maintenance plans and
enable the council to trial different treatment options and their
effectiveness to reduce risks for those walking and cycling.

Background

4. The aim of the winter maintenance service is, as far as is reasonably
possible, to allow the safe movement of traffic, pedestrians and cyclists,
on York roads, footways and cycleway during times of adverse winter
weather. It also seeks to keep delays and accidents to a minimum.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 2

This is done through precautionary treatment undertaken before ice forms
or snow settles on the highway. The precautionary treatment is currently
only to footways and carriageways on the defined network, which
excludes some footways and cycle ways that are off vehicular highways.

The current policy states cycle routes will be treated as directed by the
Winter Maintenance Duty Officer, this will only occur when there are
available resources and materials.

In effect this means cycle routes on roads are treated but those off the
main highway network are rarely treated.

For the coming winter season a pilot is proposed that would undertake
treating a defined section of York’s cycle route that is off vehicular
highways.

The defined route is detailed in (Annex A). The route has been prepared
with the Councils cycling officer to identify well used sections of the cycle
network but also to ensure that the route works operationally without
major modification to infrastructure such as gates etc.

The service will operate with two different vehicles a quad bike and a
gator type machine

The route will be approximately 18km starting and finishing from Hazel
Court James Street. To maximise the benefit of the route it is proposed to
treat the foot bridges along the route.

Typical salt and grit treatments are less effective on cycle networks as
they require the action of vehicle tyres to work them into any snow or ice.
Whilst cars and Lorries generally follow the same tyre path. Cycle tyres
are much thinner and therefore these typical treatments are less effective.

This has determined the need for two footpath vehicles and alternative
treatment solutions, we will select a solution which is non corrosive for
the treatment of the bridges. The rest of the route will be treated with a
brine solution.

To deliver the service new vehicles will need to be added to the council’s
fleet, these will be non typical vehicles such as a quad bike and gator. For
the pilot these will be hired rather than purchased.



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 3

This pilot will not formally be part of the Councils Winter Service Plan, but
will run alongside as a pilot. After the winter the pilot will be assessed
and considered for formally incorporating into the Winter Service Plan.

Consultation

The priority cycle route selected has been determined seeking advice and
consultation from internal sources, and an external list of e-mails received
by the walkcycle.winter.maintenance@york.gov.uk e-mail address that
was set up in mid-January 2019.

Replies received from 7 sources

Jubilee Terrace to Scarborough Bridge (6 replies)

Post Office Lane & Scarborough Bridge ramps (1 reply)

Millennium Bridge approaches including Butcher Terrace, Hospital Fields
Road ramp and Maple Grove link (2 replies)

Foss Islands Path (former railway) (1 reply)

This e-mail address was sent to York Bike Belles and York Cycle
Campaign.

Options
Option 1: - Undertake a limited pilot focusing on the busier sections of
the network than can be treated without work to the infrastructure to

allow access. This is the recommended option.

Option 2: - To incorporate winter treatment of cycle-ways into the winter
maintenance plan. This is not the recommended option.

Option 3: - Do nothing. This is not the recommended option.

Analysis

20.

21.

Option 1 allows the Council to pilot the equipment and treatments in
developing an off vehicular highway cycle winter maintenance plan to
assess effectiveness and develop a better understanding of the cost
implications.

Option 2 would require greater work to prepare the network for access by
treatment vehicles.


mailto:walkcycle.winter.maintenance@york.gov.uk

22

Page 4

. Option 3 would not address issue of winter maintenance for off adopted

highway cycle-ways.

Council Plan

23. The pilot of winter maintenance meets the emerging Council Plan

outcome of Getting around Sustainably

Implications

24. The following implications have been considered:

Financial — The cost of the pilot is estimated to be £42k. This will be met
by the current winter maintenance budget which is £401k. By its nature
the winter maintenance budget is not predictable, in 2018/19 there was an
underspend of £61k. Should this not occur in 2019/20 there is a winter
maintenance contingency available of £258k, in addition to the annual
budget, which could be utilised. The ongoing budget impact following the
trial will need to be considered as part of the annual budget process.

Legal - The council has a statutory obligation under Section 41 of The
Highways Act 1980 to maintain the highway. Section 150 of the Highways
Act 1980 also imposes a duty upon authorities to remove any obstruction
on the highway resulting from “accumulation of snow or from the falling
down of banks on the side of the highway or from any other cause”. The
Railways and Transport Safety Act 2003 inserted Section 41 to the
Highways Act, to place a duty on the highway authority to ensure, so far
as is reasonably practicable, that safe passage along a highway is not
endangered by snow or ice. (Note, that this is not an absolute duty given
the qualification of ‘reasonable practicability’ and that the description
‘highway’ applies to both carriageways and footways). The Council
therefore has a plan of priority and secondary routes in order to provide
and an effective and efficient winter maintenance service.

Risk Management

25.

26.

A pilot to treat the off adopted highway cycle-ways as part of the winter
maintenance

The proposed option is compliant with the Council’s risk management
strategy, the following risks associated with the recommendation in this
report have been identified and described in the following points, and set
out in the table below:



Page 5

27. Authority reputation —This risk is in connection with the public perception
of the Council if the recommended scheme does not significantly
manage the route so far as is reasonably practicable, that safe passage
along a highway is not endangered by snow or ice.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Bill Manby James Gilchrist
Head of Highways and Fleet Assistant Director, Transport, Highways
Tel No. 01904 553233 and Environment

Report Date 9 September 2019

Approved
Wards Affected: All

\/

For further information please contact the author of the report

Annexes

Annex A — Cycle Winter Maintenance Pilot Plan

Annex B — Winter Service Plan



This page is intentionally left blank



)
-

oo

ré >\\ 3 )\

N I NAR PPN
2 s 257 >

L

/"‘—_ Quadbike_Brine_Spray_TriaI_On,fl
B
i

=
-

3 e
N LI

;?\{/S‘\B@
7
e

!

SN ALY

AN

=

il
O
]

[P
LTJ

=
<4
4

L
iy

B
/bu

)

)

)

r.
s

r_E:.
niﬂ-

i

8

'1

=

r

Grange Q

L,
LJI'\-’

[

{
@

Z
CHIRN

?é,%:%ﬁ

North Field

=

=

—
AT

e —— ~
"[—-—-_._
La

=]

]

7l

0/,
"
&,

J

Y,

\1_5.?

R &
T
~
o B
s o
T~

=

===
e
S

& : '\v
&
<
7

=
U

S

&9

N

=1 J E
k\?ﬁ/ E i\%; ;rg') ﬂi\

\
.

il
<

o

N

A

W
N
—

-
%

Ny,

.

N
N
S
>

3

&Y

i
s
)

o A

v

4

‘L:x"“u
2

a2

Vi
oy G/
N ?\‘ \3‘3‘1*;:
LY

7

»f\g

£

r

.\
>
£ 5o

7
<
£ \;’3,/;'3

]

DA
s Apple £
Tree Farm

s
e

e “Beck ., J,
{ﬁgﬁ\' K ,,;’{éGCII Farm
Osbaldwick | \\¢ Yadl
\ AN i
AN

Cottage Y
Farm Stables \\
< j \\.

Qshaldwick '=|
Road Crossing

Lane- "

©t—Bland=

=

-

ek

—

_noad= - ey

=

R — Ay
e N = f

gi==l=nl"’

K:;@ii =/ ;Uw

NI ——=r

2

=

f/_\(ﬁ;‘:_::,? — o= N
RN A\ (oS —=Rr STan? o
C%\ﬁ” ~ &L\ 7

&

e
==

L

e
T

¥

o
o

-

/G
3

i,

P

=/

/4

=

It

g
/ %
7

L
2/
B

o

—

M

7/

- Ui !
& V’é‘\;\ﬁ”’”&\@%ﬂ’g\ v‘;\;ﬁ 2N
Fields\“\sﬁgf [ gﬁﬁi ,f,/_{\éj ‘;\/ ﬁ\\é‘ \g%,g,
%@ﬁ \:\S}’{:{}?? i/ %(‘"j"{\'}bﬁ??%&&\é
=] o -/ / ” /'i;:j,/\\\‘\,-, \?9\\/
:![‘1 .ré‘n 'é{ g 5 8, N 2
' Sy n 2
XJ ﬂb‘i@/ﬁ ///ﬁ;//:/
28

S =
I\\\‘F " "y ,’(\& T ..
\

I e 2 \\.&
N b \?\\ A\

2N

o

4
Y

5 <

/
{i
\""h{“‘--h

v

\\\

[ )ff
)

25

| —l

mm—

-

7,
e

Z 2 Linelir
3 gHQSh 1

N
A

N
/";i

-

et

0y

[ | o ot
=) NN\

::""’:‘T"‘ T2l (5
=AY

Middle orpe/

i

Middlethorpe

\ \
"

—
—
Ve

- —

pe Ings
P

Heslington 05
Common

0.7

o
\\ g /\\ N
\ o \\ -
2\ - Rt \
"Mi Prospect Fa
N
\';‘Q\ ’.}‘;
N G@
g 2@
\K Primrose i
N :
N Hill Farm /
\\\ \‘}\'\_
\\\ \\‘\\:\ (’
N\ NS

\.\ Tillmite
\Dr’g in

Ny

_||River Duse

\\

Wy

Red House Housc

Moor Lane Fa




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9
YORK

L—‘ZQ CITY OF
& COUNCIL

Annex B

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2
Page 1

Highway Maintenance Services

Winter Service Plan

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.



Page 10

s CouNciL Annex B

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2
Page 2

This document is available on the the Council’s website and will be updated as amendments are
made.

First Issue September 2015
This Version: 1.2 Issued November 2019.

Section Contents
Table of Amendments
1 Foreword
2 Introduction
3 Legislation and Guidance
4 Objectives, Resilience and Efficiencies
5 Weather Forecasting and Monitoring
6 Precautionary Salting
7 Network Users and Promoted Facilities
8 Salt Management
9 Critical Salt Levels Emergency Plan
10 Salt / Grit bins
11 Operational Arrangements with Partners
12 Winter Service Operational Plan
13 Communications and Publicity
14 Co-ordination and Collaboration
15 Staff Training and Development
16 Mutual Aid
17 Risk
18 Benchmarking
19 New Developments and Private Streets

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.



Page 11

COUNCIL AnneXB

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 3

20 Call Centres and Control Centres

21 Equality and Diversity

22 Appendix A - Advice to Members of the Public

23 Appendix B — Precautionary Salting Matrices

1 Foreword

1.1 | This document sets out the City of York Council’s policies and standards for Winter

Service treatment.

1.2 | This plan is accompanied by the Winter Service Operational Plan and procedures
containing the arrangements in place to deliver the plan and detailed route plans
showing how the road network will be treated. These documents include personal details
so are not published.

1.3 | Thisis a live document and it will be updated as legislation and resources etc. change.

2 Introduction

2.1 The purpose of this plan is to set out the principles that the City of York Council uses

during the adverse winter conditions which have a major disruptive impact on our
community including businesses, education, transport, health and social care. Winter
Maintenance is an important role undertaken by the Council This role is carried out in
order to allow all road users to move about as safely as possible and to help minimise
the disruptive effect of severe weather. Winter Maintenance is also about meeting the
needs of local communities across the City of York Council area, particularly the most
vulnerable residents, and includes a focus on providing access to essential services,
clearing specifically designated pavements and supplying salt to the many grit bins
that are located across the region to facilitate self-help.

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 12

s CouNciL Annex B

City of York Council
Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2
Page 4

The Winter Maintenance role has to be delivered efficiently thus contributing to the
austerity requirements of the Comprehensive Spending Review.

It is intended, through the use of this plan, to ensure that there is a uniform approach
to the level of service throughout the City of York Council. It lays down which
categories of road are to be treated, in what order of priority, and how quickly they
should be treated.

2.2 This plan reflects the recommendations of the Well-maintained Highways: Code of
Practice for Highway Maintenance Management (Roads Liaison Group, July 2005)
and the Code’s latest Update dated 18™ September 2013.

The current version is at: http://www.ukroadsliaisongroup.org

2.3 The City of York Council, as the Highway Authority, is responsible for providing a
winter service on adopted public highways within the region except for motorways,
which are the responsibility of Highways England.

2.4 It will not be reasonably practicable to provide the service on all parts of the network
or to ensure all surfaces are kept free of ice or snow at all times, even on the treated
parts of the network.

The objective is that a network of treated routes should be reasonably accessible for
the majority of residents and businesses, supplemented by targeted provision of self-
help facilities.

2.5 It should be noted that the service does not guarantee that at any given time a
highway will be free of ice or snow, even following treatment.

2.6 Throughout the rest of the document the Numbering System used in the
Recommendations and Warnings sections of Chapter 13 and Appendix H: Winter
Service Practical Guidance of Well-maintained Highways: Code of Practice for
Highway Maintenance Management are used to allow links to the Code.

For example

Winter Service Policy:

Minimum Winter Networks: and

W1 Warning pre-wetted salting:

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 13

COUNCIL AnneXB

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 5

3

Legislation and Guidance

3.1

Section 41 of the Highways Act 1980 and Section 150 imposes a duty on highway
authorities to maintain highways maintainable at public expense. In particular,
Section 41 (1A), as inserted by Section 111 of the Railways and Transport Safety
Act 2003, which imposes a duty on highway authorities to ensure, so far as is
reasonably practicable, that safe passage along a highway is not endangered by
snow or ice.

3.2

The Department for Transport (DfT) has advised that it is for the courts to decide
what is reasonably practicable. However, DfT strongly recommends that local
highway authorities carry out winter maintenance in accordance with Section 13 of
Well-maintained Highways: Code of Practice for Maintenance Management and any
supplementary guidance. Amongst other recommendations, the Code states that
best practice would be for local highway authorities to adopt and publish a Winter
Service Plan and a Winter Service Operational Plan, which should be reviewed
annually to take account of changing circumstances.

3.3

Under Section 150(1) of the Highways Act 1980, there is a requirement for the
Highway Authority to remove an accumulation of snow which forms an obstruction,
and Section 150(3) of the Act states that the following factors should be taken into
account:
e the character of the highway and the nature and amount of traffic using it
e the nature and extent of the obstruction
e the resources of the workforce, vehicles and equipment available to the
Highway Authority and extent to which those resources are being, or need
to be, employed on such work

3.4

In addition, the Traffic Management Act 2004 places a network management duty on
all local traffic authorities in England. It requires authorities to do all that is
reasonably practicable to manage the network effectively to keep traffic moving.

3.5

Thus it is recognised that it would not be practical for any Highway Authority to treat
all roads and footways in the event that ice forms or snow falls.

Objectives, Resilience and Efficiencies

4.1

OBJECTIVES

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 14

COUNCIL AnneXB

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 6

4.1.1

The objectives of the winter service, so far as is reasonably practicable, are to:

e ensure the safe movement of vehicles and pedestrians on the highway
network

¢ minimise delays, accidents and damage to the highway resulting from ice and
snow

¢ undertake the winter service effectively and efficiently within the limitations of
finite resources according to the network hierarchy and severity of weather
conditions

e provide support to wider area emergencies and incidents by implementing
mutual aid arrangements with other partners within the limits of the resources

available
o The roles of Client and Service Provider are clearly set out in contracts and
formal arrangements operated by the Council.
o Within the Council it is Officers who set standards and actually make the

decision to undertake any and all operations.
o The Highway Liability claims are dealt with by the Council.

4.2 RESILIENCE
4.2.1 The Councils’ winter service standards are based on the national guidance and are
described as:

e Overall Winter Service Period — usually starts on 1st October and finishes
on 30th April inclusive. This is locally defined since the winter period may vary
according to climatic conditions

e Core Winter Service Period — usually starts at least December and runs to
February inclusive. This is locally defined since the winter period may vary
according to climatic conditions

e Minimum Winter Service Network — This is the part of the carriageway
network that is normally treated which provides a minimum essential service
to the public, including strategic routes, access to key facilities and other
transport needs

4.2.4 Road conditions can vary across the region due to topographical differences, which
may have a bearing on how resilience standards are deployed.

4.3 EFFICIENCIES

4.3.1 Budgetary constraints and the need to provide value-for money services are key

issues for all local authorities. For highway authorities, Winter Service presents

particular challenges due to:

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 15

p COUNCIL AnneXB

City of York Council
Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2
Page 7

the running costs of salting vehicles and crews
the cost of salt

changeable weather conditions

high public demand for clear and safe roads

the investment cost of holding large stocks of salt

4.3.2 Recognising these issues the Council continually seeks to increase the efficiency
and cost-effectiveness of the Winter Service operations.

4.3.3 The Authorities across the region currently operate fleets of front line vehicles and
teams of drivers based at strategically located depots, to salt the Primary Salting
Network.

4.3.4 One of the key aims is to ensure that all designated routes are salted efficiently and
that salt is not wasted.

4.3.6 The Authority shall continue to monitor performance during service delivery and
respond effectively to changing conditions and or network incidents.

5 Weather Forecasting and Monitoring

5.1 Weather information is obtained from specialist forecasters, roadside monitoring
stations and in unpredictable circumstances may be supplemented by inspections.

5.2 York Council has contracts with appropriate forecasting organisations which provide
daily weather forecasts that are detailed for each area and updated every morning
and evening and as conditions change outside the pre-defined Intervention Criteria
at any time of the day or night. In addition, forecasters are available 24 hours a day
to discuss the forecast and changes in conditions.

Additional real-time information is provided by a network of roadside sensor stations
around the region that report on air temperature, ground temperature, relative
humidity and in some cases have cameras and provide local site forecasts.

5.3 When the available forecast information is uncertain or conditions are changing
unpredictably, patrols (often a fully loaded gritter able to react to specific problems)
may be mobilised to report on conditions along pre-determined routes or at specific
points of interest.

5.4 These sources of information inform treatment decisions that are made by the
specifically designated, trained and experienced duty winter service officers.

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.



Page 16

s CouNciL Annex B

City of York Council
Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2
Page 8

(Further details are given in section 17.2 below)

5.5 Severe winter weather is defined as when a forecast (including severe weather
warnings) has been issued by the Met Office, which are issued when the probability
of a specified event occurring exceeds a pre-defined threshold, for example, if there
is a High Probability of Show and an accumulation of more than 50 mm

6 Precautionary Salting

6.1 GENERAL

6.1.1 Winter Service operations will give priority to routes comprising the Principal Road
Network, main and secondary distributor roads, links to villages, major bus routes,
emergency service locations and reasonable proximity to schools.

6.1.2 The treated network is approximately half of the road network, which is divided into
categories. These routes are reviewed annually by taking into account any service
requests received or difficulties encountered in delivering the service during the
previous winter season.

6.1.3 Schools, health centres and other community facilities are given a higher priority
within the network by including them, where possible within the primary route
network. In instances where they cannot be directly served by the Primary Salting
Network they will, where possible, be within a short distance.

6.2 EXCEPTIONS

6.2.1 It should be noted that whilst the principles set out in this plan have been used to
determine the salting networks, it remains that there are possibly short sections of
road that might otherwise be included in the salting networks which it is not
practicable to include due to permanent or temporary width and / or weight
constraints.

6.2.2 Network Rail level crossings have equipment which is prone to signal failure when
solutions, high in salt, exist. Consequently any lengths of road on the salting
networks within a zone agreed with Network Rail between the ‘STOP’ lines at level
crossings will not be salted.

6.3 CARRIAGEWAY PRECAUTIONARY NETWORK (Primary Salting
Network PSN*)

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.



Page 17

COUNCIL AnneXB

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 9

6.3.1

Primary Salting Network PSN*

Classified Roads (A, B and C roads)

Urban motorway,

Important commuter routes.

Roads to main emergency service properties.
Main bus routes.

Details of the PSN* are on the Council’'s Website.

6.3.2 Gritting is carried out before the onset of adverse conditions whenever possible.
Where severe conditions such as snow or ice persist, resources will remain
concentrated on the PSN

6.3.4 The response time for the precautionary network from the point at which gritting is
called to the point at which the gritters leave the depot is 1 hour for all council. The
treatment time can take up to 3 hours, from the point at which the gritter leaves the
depot to the point at which treatment is complete which is dependent on the route
and traffic conditions.

6.4 CARRIAGEWAY SECONDARY NETWORK (Secondary Salting
Network )SSN

6.4.1 Secondary carriageway routes Secondary Salting Network SSN
The SSN will only be gritted if severe weather conditions are likely to persist for a
significant period beyond the completion of the PSN and the Convening of the
Winter Group

6.4.2 Secondary Salting Network SSN

Link roads to the Primary Salting Network.

Spine roads into housing and industrial areas.

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 18

COUNCIL AnneXB

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 10

Important rural routes.

6.4.3 The City will aim to treat the Secondary Network only during normal daytime working
hours (8am — 4pm). When the forecast is sufficiently clear, treatment will be carried
out on the preceding day. Where adequate warning is not given, treatment will be
after the event provided this is still required. Hoar frost is not treated unless
conditions are exceptional.

6.4.4 When treating the secondary salting network it isn’t appropriate to set target
completion times for routes

6.4.5 Secondary routes will also be reviewed annually taking into account any service
requests received or difficulties encountered in delivering the service during the
previous winter season.

6.5 CARRIAGEWAY NON-PRECAUTIONARY NETWORK Priority 3 Salting
Network PR 3

6.5.1 Priority 3 Salting Network PR 3
On satisfactory completion of the PSN and SSN and if the severe weather
conditions persist these will be treated on a reactive basis. It is therefore dependent
upon resources and the changing weather conditions.

6.5.2 Priority 3 Salting Network PR 3
Roads not treated as PSN OR SSN,

e.g. culs de sac

6.6 CYCLE LANE AND CYCLE TRACK PRECAUTIONARY NETWORK

6.6.1 Cycle lanes on the main routes will be treated at the same time as the roads they
are on.

6.7 CYCLE LANE AND CYCLE TRACK NON-PRECAUTIONARY NETWORKS

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 19

COUNCIL AnneXB

City of York Council

Winter

Service Plan

Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 11

6.7.1

Cycle lanes on lower priority routes will be treated at the same priority as those
routes. During severe weather cycle tracks off the road network may be treated
during normal working hours by the manual application of salt, on a "reactive salting"
basis, after treatment of higher priority routes have been completed, having regard
to available resources and prevailing conditions. The treatment of these will reflect
their importance in the Council's cycle route hierarchy.

6.8

FOOTWAY NETWORKS

6.8.1

Priority Pavement Routes — designated main city and town centre pavements.
The standard response time across the whole group is 1 hour for a “Call Out” action.

Where appropriate footbridges, subways and other high risk pedestrian areas are
designated parts of the Priority Pavement Routes

When adverse severe weather is forecast pre-treatment of designated city and town
centre pavements etc. takes place.

Appropriate plant including dedicated small 4x4 all-terrain vehicles are used

There are dedicated teams with a small lorry/pick-up to carry salt for each
designated town centre (route), usually deployed by 05:00 in response to severe
adverse weather.

Further teams with their own salt supply are deployed in response to conditions,
usually from 08:00 to 16:00. The Council may treat these pavements at any time of
day.

6.8.2

Secondary Pavement Routes — smaller town centres, schools, health centres,
hospitals, old people’s homes, surgeries, shopping centres, transport interchanges.

These are only dealt with after the Priority Pavement Routes are safe and as
resources become available, usually during the working day from 08:00 to 16:00.
Some Alliance members may treat these pavements at any time of day.

6.8.3

Other Pavements — the remaining pavements

These are not normally dealt with, but if in response to circumstances it is necessary

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 20

s CouNciL Annex B

City of York Council
Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2
Page 12

it is only after the Secondary Route Pavement Routes are safe and as resources
become available, usually during the working day from 08:00 to 16:00. The Council
may treat these pavements at any time of day.

6.8.4 Special sites or features (e.g. near railways or traffic calming).
Network Rail set requirements for salting near level crossings.
Traffic calming measures are usually designed so that they do not require special

attention when gritting or ploughing. Drivers know where roads have plateaux or
humps etc and drive at an appropriate speed.

7 Network Users, Promoted Facilities and Community Self Help

7.1 The City of York Council proactively engages with the emergency services to not
only encourage them to develop their own severe weather contingency plans but to
work closer with them to consider collaborative arrangement especially in extreme
winter conditions.

7.2 Emergency services are routinely accounted for on the priority networks as part of
the normal winter service.

7.3 Transport Interchanges

7.3.1 Transport Interchanges are routinely accounted for on the priority networks as part
of the normal winter service.

7.4 Pedestrians and Cyclists

7.4.1 The treatment arrangements for footways (pavements) cycle lanes and cycle tracks
are set out above in Section 6.

7.5 Vulnerable Network Users
7.5.1
7.6 COMMUNITY SELF HELP

7.6.1 Self help facilities and training are offered to volunteers who wish to become “Snow

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.



Page 21

COUNCIL AnneXB

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 13

\Wardens”

7.6.2

There is a widespread fear held by members of the community that they risk being
‘sued’ if they clear snow from the footway outside their properties, which now
appears largely imaginary and media driven. There is advice available on how to
minimise the risk of legal action which is in Appendix A to this plan.

Salt Management

8.1

Salt is restocked during the summer, in advance of the winter season when
prices can be lower plus demand on salt suppliers is minimal and it can
therefore be planned and co-ordinated with the supplier and contractor to
minimise cost.

Restocking during the winter is a routine necessity for some Councils and is in
any case dependent upon operational requirements.

8.2

Salt for use in gritters is 6 or 10mm size rock salt depending on individual
Council’s current policy.

Critical Salt Levels Emergency Plan (Resilience) (RH1.1, RH2.1 & RH2.2, R13.2
to R13.5, R13.10 & R13.11, R13.18)

0.1

GENERAL

9.1.1

In the event that salt stocks approach critical levels, a Command Control is called
and salt conservation measures initiated.
This is likely to happen in one or a few WY Plus Alliance members first.

9.1.2

This Salt Emergency Plan is for use when salt stocks within a Council are predicted
to fall below the level determined by the Council in their Operational Plan and
prolonged Severe Winter Weather is forecast.

9.1.3

As soon as it is identified that this condition is likely to develop, the Command
Control involving internal and external stakeholders and the emergency services is
to be called.

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 22

COUNCIL AnneXB

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 14

9.2

SALT SUPPLIES

0.2.1

In the event that supplies from the contracted supplier are insufficient or stopped the

following action or actions may be taken:

e continually press the supplier to increase deliveries stressing how many
salting runs remain so that the urgency is clear

e contact alternative suppliers

e contact adjacent highway authorities requesting supplies on loan or for
purchase

e contact Highways England for assistance

e use mutual aid via the Council’s partnership arrangements

e work with any national arrangements in place for salt priority distribution

9.3

EXTENDING EXISTING SALT STOCKS

9.3.1

Targeting salt storage with the least stocks first, extend rock salt by pre-mixing with
fine 3mm aggregate or sharp sand in a proportion of 1:1 or as may be deemed
appropriate, although not all of the Councils have the means of doing this.

9.4

CONSERVING SALT STOCKS — GENERAL ACTIONS

9.4.1

The purpose is to extend the availability of salt or salt mixtures for use on strategic
routes.

9.4.2

Actions can be one or any combination of (NB not in priority order):

e cease responding to requests for spot treatment. Exceptions may be made
for genuine immediate emergencies involving threat to life

¢ in snow conditions, plough routes without salting if practical. When snowfall
ceases, assess the conditions and consider applying salt, salt / grit mixture or
grit to the ploughed surface

¢ allow snow to compact under the action of traffic on some or all of the
precautionary routes without salting

e consult the CSS advice note on how to preserve salt stocks

e cease the refilling of grit bins and not providing salt heaps

9.5

CONSERVING SALT STOCKS — ROUTE RESTRICTIONS

9.5.1

Actions can be one or any of(NB not in priority order):
e reduce the extent of initial ploughing on Primary Salting Network routes

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




City of
Winter

Page 23

COUNCIL AnneXB

York Council
Service Plan

Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 15
e treat only Primary Salting Network routes, with reduced or no secondary
routes treated
e treat routes only on the pre-defined Minimum Winter Service Network as used
in the severe winters of 2009 and 2010 (principally consisting of routes linking
major population centres to principal emergency facilities and linking to
national routes)
0.6 MEDIA
9.6.1 The Council will engage with the media to provide realistic expectations of people’s

ability to travel for essential purposes only and the Councils’ websites will be
updated as necessary.

10

Salt / Grit Bins

10.1

Grit Bins etc. (Location and maintenance of salt bins);

The Council has a policy for providing grit bins tailored to the specific needs of the
local area.

For example an urban area with lots of steep roads may have a large number of
bins.

11

Operational Arrangements with Partners (both between Alliance members and
external Councils)

11.1

For reasons of route integrity mutual arrangements may be made, as required, with
neighbouring authorities for precautionary gritting etc. These are listed in the
individual Winter Service Operational Plans.

11.2

Reciprocal arrangements for precautionary gritting may be made with neighbouring
authorities under section 8 of the Highways Act 1980 and legally confirmed as
appropriate. Under such arrangements mutual aid may also be considered, which is
detailed in the Winter Service Operational Plan.

11.3

There will be a co-ordinated approach to implementing Minimum Winter Service
Networks across adjacent highway authorities; however there may be occasions,
which could occur where different treatment regimes are planned for the respective

road networks.

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 24

COUNCIL AnneXB

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 16

11.4

The Councils will engage, as necessary, with the appropriate District and Parish
Councils to identify possible available resources to support the Council’s Winter
Service.

12

Winter Service Operational Plan

12.1

The Councils’ Winter Service Operational Plans are maintained with the purpose of
providing the necessary procedural and functional arrangements necessary to carry
out the service in accordance with this Plan.

All aspects of the Winter Service Operational Plan, including service delivery
arrangements, will be reviewed annually in consultation with key stakeholders to
allow for any changes in circumstances. It is reviewed after the end of a winter
season in readiness for the forthcoming winter season.

The Operational Plans include personal data and are not published.

13

Communications and Publicity

13.1

It is inevitable that some roads will become difficult and indeed impassable in winter
conditions particularly given the topography of the area. It is also practically
impossible to treat all roads. There is therefore a need to let the travelling public
know which roads are available and which are not. This has historically been carried
out through the local media, mainly local radio stations and this means of keeping
the public, especially drivers, informed will continue.

13.2

The primary means to inform the public about the Winter Service is on the Councils’
website, which are continually being updated and there are supplemented by press
releases and printed material.

The Council provides a “Yorkgritter Twitter” daily update and as conditions change.

13.3

The Councils’ Snow webpages provide a single portal for the public to obtain a
variety of key information during severe weather. This includes gritting routes,
reporting a grit bin empty (including District and Parish owned grit bins) and
information on disruptions including road, school and library closures together with
event cancellations.

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 25

COUNCIL AnneXB

City of York Council

Winter

Service Plan

Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 17

13.3.1

Officers work with education organisations to ensure that arrangements are in place
to provide the latest information so that schools and academies can publish their
status on their web sites and text messaging services.

13.3.2 [The local radio stations use this information from the council and schools and
academies to publish closures on their web sites.

13.4 In addition, members of the public are able to learn more about what the
Council is doing to assist local communities such as the Snow Warden
Scheme, working with farmers / contractors and providing links to partner websites.

13.5 Further information is available providing advice on emergency help, how to keep
warm, winter driving tips and snow buddies.

13.6 The website will be updated as appropriate during snow events with the most up to
date information available.

13.7 Information on the condition of the worse affected roads will also be available.

13.8 To assist in managing expectations in terms of the assistance the Council is
able to offer, during periods of severe weather, is paramount and therefore it is
considered appropriate that the following will be included in all relevant Council
communications:
‘In heavy snow and freezing conditions, our main focus is on keeping main roads,
bus routes and routes to essential services open. We cannot guarantee we'll grit
roads which are not on these routes. You can request a road to be gritted by filling in
the online form. But we’ll only consider these roads when Primary Salting Network
roads have been treated and any requests will be dealt in order of where need is
greatest.’

13.9 Also included is the principal criterion used in assessing the placement of salt bins.

13.10 [In prolonged severe weather conditions additional information is published through
all available media.

13.11 [The Councils also use social networking sites as an additional means of providing

up to date information.

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 26

s CouNciL Annex B

City of York Council
Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2
Page 18

14 Co-ordination and Collaboration

14.1 The Councils are constantly reviewing and determining critical areas and
infrastructure in conjunction with key public services and other stakeholders and
seeking to ensure that the appropriate winter service has been considered by the
appropriate party.
This may include:

e shared services

¢ lead authority arrangements

e collaborative service procurement

e sharing depots and salt stock

14.2 An example of this is the formation of the West Yorkshire Plus Alliance.

15 Staff Training and Development

15.1 To ensure the appropriate level of competence, the training and development needs
of all personnel will be reviewed annually, including health and safety and any
appropriate vocational qualifications.

15.2 Designated council officers undergo a training process, shadowing experienced
Decision Makers, completing formal training (The Met Office Open Road Training for
example) and a period of supervised Decision Making before being placed on rota to
make live decisions. There then follows a period when they are mentored by
experienced staff.

Decision Makers often consult other qualified and experienced colleagues when
coming to the decision on appropriate action.

The formal training is repeated every two years for all Decision Makers.

15.3 An investigation is being undertaken by one of the Districts into a City and Guilds
gualification for Decision Makers.

15.4 At the start of the winter all the gritter drivers undertake drivers' training (City &
Guilds 6159)

16 Mutual Aid

16.1 The close working relationship adopted by all the West Yorkshire Plus Districts
ensures that this will be implemented when necessary.

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.



Page 27

s CouNciL Annex B

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 19
16.2 However it is clear that the prolonged severe adverse weather is likely to affect all
the partners at the same time, meaning that government assistance will be
inevitable.
16.3 Liaison with Category 1 and Category 2 responders (reference Civil Contingencies
Act 2004).

Resilience within the country is managed through the Civil Contingencies Act 2004
and the Local Resilience Forums. These forums are Police Force area based, ie.
West Yorkshire and North Yorkshire.

Actual details of Silver and Gold arrangements are set out in the Winter Operational

Plans.
17 Risk
17.1 Financial

17.1.1 [The Council has its own approach and details are set out in individual Operational
Plans

17.2 Operational

17.2.1 [The Winter Service Operational Plans detail additional policy and other operational
requirements. Confidence in them is high with robust systems being in place and
they are reviewed annually.

17.2.2 |[Evaluation and utilisation of modern technology and optimisation of the winter
service routes at appropriate stages as the network develops improves the councils
ability to monitor delivery and strengthen the Councils’ defence in litigation in the
light of current national guidance.

18 Benchmarking

18.1 The Council will periodically benchmark its services with other authorities to ensure
best value.

19 New Developments and Private Streets

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.



Page 28

COUNCIL AnneXB

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2

Page 20

19.1 New Developments

19.1.1 [The Councils has no obligation to provide a winter service until a new road is
formally adopted. The developer is responsible for maintaining the road until it is
adopted, which includes a provision for a winter service.

19.1.2 |The Council will respond to assist the emergency services when requested by them
to do so whenever possible.

19.1.3 |Once a development is adopted and if any carriageways and footways that
meet the criterion for winter service are added to any of the routes that include
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) or other similar features then these sections
may have to be omitted, from the routes, because of the risk of pollution or damage
to trees etc. This will depend on how effective the various options are at removing
salt and other pollutants from the SuDS.

19.2 UN-ADOPTED ROADS AND PRIVATE STREETS

19.2.1 |No winter service is provided for these roads and streets; however Councils will try
to respond to assist the emergency services when requested by them to do so
whenever possible.

20 Call Centres and Control Centres

20.1 Call Centres

20.1.1 [The Councils’ Call Centre provides a speedy and direct response for many of the
varied enquiries received, for example, requests for re-filling salt / grit bins, which, in
some cases are dealt with by the Control Centre, where the Council operates one.

20.2 Control Centres

20.2.1 |Where a Control Centre is in operation it deals throughout the year with all types of
urgent works that originate either as enquiries from the public, usually via the Call
Centres and the Councils’ websites or from defects identified by the Councils’
Inspectors.

20.2.2 |Often the Control Centres have access to ‘Rapid Response’ gangs available to carry

out this work.

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 29

;““‘Q"‘ CITY OF

YORK

s CouNciL Annex B

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2
Page 21

20.2.3 |Following periods of snow and ice additional gangs are often drafted in to cope with
an appreciable increase in workload for urgent work.

20.2.4 |During periods when repairs cannot be progressed because snow is on the ground
the ‘Rapid Response’ teams may also be used to re-fill salt bins and provide support
for winter service operations around the region.

21 Equality and Diversity

21.1 The Councils have a strong commitment to and due regard to the need to eliminate
unfair and unlawful discrimination and to advance the equality of opportunity by
considering the need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by people due
to their protected characteristics, or to meet the needs of people with protected

characteristics.

21.2 Each Council’s Equality Impact Assessment for the Winter Service is available
separately.

22 Appendix A — Advice to members of the Public in Snowy and icy Conditions

NB: See http://www.metoffice.gov.uk/get-ready-for-winter/out-and-about/the-snow-
code

22.1 Provided that members of the public who clear snow and ice from pavements or minc
property take reasonable care and apply a common sense approach in doing so, the)
themselves being held liable if someone has an accident and is injured on the area th

22.2 If members of the public take action to clear snow and ice they should ensure that

they do not create any further hazards by doing so. For example:

e Do not clear ice using boiling water which then freezes over the surface of the
road

e Do not clear an area leaving an obstructive mound of snow on the Pavement

e Do not attempt to clear the snow if you feel that this will cause you physical
difficulty

e Take reasonable care in all of the circumstances

23 Appendix B — Precautionary Salting Matrices

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.


http://www.metoffice.gov.uk/get-ready-for-winter/out-and-about/the-snow-code
http://www.metoffice.gov.uk/get-ready-for-winter/out-and-about/the-snow-code

COUNCIL

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2
Page 22

Page 30

Annex B

23.1

The City of York Council has carefully considered the matrices set out in the current
version of Well-maintained Highways
Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance Management and their ability to achieve
the stated spread rates and developed the table below:

Based on: TREATMENT MATRICES A to C (Pages 396 to 398) (De-icer spread
rates in g/m?).
Frost or forecast frost DRY SALTING PRE-WETTED TREATED
Road Surface Column K: GC MT | SALTING If SALTING If
Temperature (RST) and NL available. (NB Available
Road Surface Wetness Only the de-icer Column K: GC
figures are MT NL
included)
Column K: GC MT
NL
RST at or above -2°C and
dry or damp road 10 8 7
conditions
RST at or aboy_e -2°C and 10 3 .
wet road conditions
RST below -2°C and
above -5°C and dry or 15 11 8
damp road conditions
RST below -2°C and
above -5°C after rain and 20 21 16
wet road conditions
RST at or below -5°C and
above -10°C *1 and dry or 20 21 15
damp road conditions
RST at or below -5°C and
above -10°C *1 and wet 2%20 2%21 30
road conditions’
Snow (See below) 20gsm grits as 20gsm grits as 20gsm grits as
required required required

Key: Cvrg: PC = Poor coverage, FC = Fair coverage, GC = Good coverage

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.




Page 31

s CouNciL Annex B

City of York Council

Winter Service Plan
Issue date: 1/11/2019
Amendment Number 1.2
Page 23

Traffic: HT = High level, MT = Medium Level
Loss: NL = Normal loss, HL = High loss
*1 Refer to Section H10.21 Notes 3, 4 & 5 when spreading at temperatures at or below -5°C

Decision Makers use their Open Road training Table H14 — Timing of treatments for snow
and freezing rain page 401, TREATMENT MATRIX D — Precautionary Treatments Before
Snow Or Freezing Rain page 407, to determine the appropriate treatment for the whole
network. Analysis of snow forecasts show that it is usually the case that snow depth
forecasts vary across the network. Light snow does not occur at a network level, so it is not
appropriate to do a single grit at 40gsm. The Councils treat snow as a process, ensuring
that Decision Makers gather feedback from gritting crews and operational staff and often
consult the forecaster by phone before the end of a grit in advance of further snow to
determine any necessary appropriate further action.

If this document is printed from the web site it must be treated as an uncontrolled document
and may not be the current version.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33 Agenda Item 4

COUNCIL

Decision Session — Executive Member for 19 September 2019
Transport

Report of Assistant Director, Transport Highways and Environment
Hempland Avenue Speed Management Scheme - Update
Summary

1. This report summarises the results of consultation with regard the speed
management scheme at the junction of Hempland Avenue and
Hempland Lane and asks the Executive Member to decide how to
proceed with the scheme.

Recommendations

2. The Executive Member is asked to approve:
Option 1: Implement the scheme as shown in Annex C.

Reason: To help reduce vehicle speeds in an existing 20mph speed limit
on Hempland Avenue.

Background

3. Hempland Avenue was referred to the Transport Projects team for
investigation via the Speed Management Partnership following a review
of speed data.

4. To address concerns about vehicle speeds, a scheme was developed
and approved at Executive Member Decision Session in September
2018. A copy of the Report and Decision are included in Annex A. The
Executive Member approved progression of the scheme, as shown in
Option 3 of the report, to consultation and for any objections to be
reported back to a future decision session on implementation.



Page 34

Consultation

5.

10.

11.

12.

Consultation was undertaken with residents directly affected by the
proposed changes to the highway. A letter and plan shown in Annex B
were distributed to 21 residents who live the vicinity of the junction. It
was also issued to the emergency services and other road user groups.

Responses were received from three local residents, with two issues
being raised with the proposed scheme:

Issue 1: One resident responded generally in favour of the scheme but
noted concerns for cycle safety if the junction mouth is made narrower.

Officer response: Whilst the junction is narrower than in its current
arrangement the sharper turn into the junction will force drivers to slow
down and gives them less chance to try to overtake cyclists within the
junction. No cycle facilities currently exist on Hempland Avenue or
Hempland Lane which are affected by these proposals and none are
proposed as part of this scheme.

Issue 2: Two residents objected to the proposals as they considered the
speed of vehicles on Hempland Lane to be the main contributory factor
to high speeds on Hempland Avenue. They suggested that the 20mph
limit be extended or speed cameras installed to reduce speeds.

Officer Response: The purpose of the proposed scheme is to address a
speeding concern on Hempland Avenue which is subject to a 20mph
speed limit. No speed concerns on Hempland Lane have previously
been raised through the 95Alive partnership for investigation and so the
focus for this scheme has always been Hempland Avenue.

The length of Hempland Lane between Stockton Lane and Heworth
Village is part of the strategic network for the city and for this reason was
excluded from the signed 20mph speed limit for the area when it was
rolled out in 2014 and retained a 30mph speed limit. Therefore extending
the 20mph limit onto Hempland Lane would go against the 20mph Speed
Limit Policy.

The junction of Hempland Lane and Hempland Avenue features a wide
junction mouth which allows vehicles to turn into the lower speed side
road without needing to slow down. The proposed tighter turn will require
drivers to slow down and therefore they will be more likely to adhere to
the 20mph limit.



Page 35

Design Changes

13. During the period following the consultation a topographical survey was
undertaken to allow the detailed design of the scheme to take place. This
confirmed that re-profiling of the carriageway surface at the junction
would be required to ensure the cross section of the carriageway
matched the new alignment of the junction. This change and associated
increased estimated cost was report to Transport Board and a budget
increase was agreed. A general arrangement plan showing the extents
of surfacing required is provided as Annex C.

Options

14. Option 1. Implement the scheme as shown in Annex C.
15. Option 2: Do nothing.

Analysis

16. Option 1 allows the Council to respond to the initial speed complaint by
making changes to the highway as approved at Executive Member
Decision Session in 2018. Whilst the proposals have attracted a couple
of negative comments from residents the change to the geometry of the
junction will reduce speeds into Hempland Avenue more significantly
than a reduction in the signed limit on Hempland Lane would. No
objections have been submitted by any of the other consultees and so it
Is assumed that the scheme has majority support from the local
community.

17. Option 1 also provides additional improvements for pedestrians by
reducing the crossing length and relocating the crossing point to the
desire line at the junction.

18. Approving option 2 would not provide any closure to the initial speeding
complaint and would not address the high 85" percentile speeds which
were recorded when speed data was gathered.

Council Plan

19. This section explains how the proposals relate to the Council’s 3 key
priorities, as set out in the Council’'s Plan 2015-19.



Page 36

Key Priority - a council that listens to residents - to ensure it delivers the
services they want and works in partnership with local communities.

20. The Speed Management Partnership is based solely on investigating
complaints from residents and responding to those complaints using
data led analysis.

Implications

21. The following implications have been considered:

Financial — The scheme costs of the recommended option have
been estimated at £35,000 including staff costs. This is affordable
from the speed management budget allocation in the 19/20 capital
programme.

Human Resources (HR) - There are no HR implications.

One Planet Council / Equalities - There are no One Planet Council /
equalities implications.

Legal - There are no legal implications.

Crime and Disorder - There are no crime and disorder implications.
Information Technology (IT) - There are no IT implications.
Property - There are no property implications.

Risk Management

22. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, the following
risks associated with the recommendation in this report have been
identified and described in the following points, and set out in the table
below:

23.

Authority reputation —This risk is in connection with the public perception
of the Council if the recommended scheme doesn’t significantly reduce
speeds and is assessed at 8.

Risk Category | Impact | Likelihood | Score

Organisation/ Minor | Unlikely 8
Reputation




Page 37

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Ben Potter Neil Ferris

Engineer Corporate Director — Economy and Place
Transport Projects

Tel No. 01904 553496 Report Date 10 September 2019

Approved

Wards Affected: Heworth

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

Executive Member Decision Report September 2018 — Hempland Avenue —
Speed Management Scheme and decision.

Annexes

Annex A — Executive Member Decision Report September 2018 — Hempland
Avenue — Speed Management Scheme and decision.

Annex B - Consultation Letter / Plan

Annex C — General Arrangement drawing



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39

7

ANNEX A

g J CITY OF
YORK
s COUNCIL
Decision Session — Executive Member for 13 September 2018

Transport and Planning

Report of the Assistant Director, Transport, Highways and Environment
Hempland Avenue - Speed Management Scheme

Summary

1. This report presents options to address concerns about the speed of
vehicles on Hempland Avenue.

Recommendations
2. The Executive Member is asked to:

Approve Option 3, junction realignment only. Progress the
scheme to consultation with local residents, ward members and
other local interest groups. Any objections to be reported back
to a future Executive Member for Transport and Planning
Decision Session for a decision on implementation.

Reason: To provide a suitable speed reduction measure which can be
monitored post implementation without introducing potentially
unpopular vertical traffic calming measures or extra sign clutter
within an existing 20mph limit.

Background

3. The Council has previously determined that this location should be a
20mph road.

4. Hempland Avenue was referred to the Transport Projects team for
investigation via the Speed Management Partnership following a review
of speed data. The speed limit on Hempland Avenue is 20mph. The
results of the speed survey show mean speeds within the guidelines for
a 20mph limit. The 85" percentile speeds are slightly higher with a
recorded Eastbound speed of 24mph, and Westbound speeds of 26mph



Page 40
S ANNEX A

which is a little high. 68% of the vehicles travelling on Hempland Avenue
are exceeding the posted speed limit. Casualty accident records show
there have been no injury accidents on Hempland Avenue in the last 3
years.

< W

Hempland Avenue

| Location Plan ]

To address the concerns about vehicle speeds a scheme was developed
as shown in Annex A and issued for consultation with relevant CYC
officers and local ward members. This scheme comprises:

e Installation of four ‘20’ roundel markings along Hempland Avenue, one
being at the eastern gateway.



Page 41
ANNEX A

einstallation of three ‘20’ repeater signs to be located on existing lighting
columns.

eInstallation of ‘20’ roundel marking at Dale’s Lane junction with Heworth
Road.

e Realignment of kerbs at the junction with Hempland Lane, to narrow the
mouth of the junction. This aims to make the right turn onto Hempland
Avenue more acute and therefore slow vehicles down when making
the turn reducing westbound speeds along the rest of Hempland
Avenue.

Estimated cost - £17k

During consultation, a concern was raised that the proposal would
increase the level of signage clutter in the area.

Following discussion with officers a decision was taken to consider and
present alternative scheme options which do not include additional
signing or markings associated with the 20 mph limit. The alternative
scheme shown in Annex B was then developed which comprises:

e Installation of five full width road humps.

eRealignment of kerbs at the junction with Hempland Lane, to narrow the
mouth of the junction. This aims to make the right turn onto Hempland
Avenue more acute and therefore slow vehicles down when making
the turn and hopefully reduce westbound speeds along the rest of
Hempland Avenue.

Estimated cost - £45k

Consultation

8.

10.

Consultation was only undertaken for the option shown in Annex A.
Responses are recorded below with officer responses as required.

Principal Engineer — Highways Maintenance: Questioned whether a
dropped crossing with tactile paving will be provided at the junction of
Hempland Avenue and Hempland Lane when the kerbs are realigned at
the junction mouth.

Officer Response: Dropped crossing with tactile paving will be provided
but was not shown on the consultation drawing. It is included on the
Annexes provided.



Page 42
ANNEX A

11. CliIr. C. Funnell: Approves of the signing and junction realignment
scheme (Annex A).

Options

12. Option 1: approve the junction realignment and signing scheme shown in
Annex A.

13. Option 2: approve the junction realignment and traffic calming scheme
shown in Annex B and provide further funding allocation to progress.

14. Option 3: approve the junction realignment only.

15. In all cases, approve the option to proceed to consultation with local
residents, ward members and other local interest groups. Any objections
to be reported back to a future Executive Member for Transport and
Planning Decision Session for a decision on implementation.

Analysis

16. A significant factor in the higher vehicle speeds on Hempland Avenue is
the junction with Hempland Lane. The current alignment allows right
turning vehicles to enter Hempland Avenue with little to no reduction in
speed if there are no vehicles approaching the junction from the south.
Therefore, the realignment of the junction should help to reduce the
westbound vehicle speeds and is considered beneficial with or without
the other scheme elements.

17. Hempland Lane is a through route for eastbound traffic only, westbound
traffic can only proceed as far as Forest Way due to the one way section
of Dales Lane. Eastbound drivers are possibly choosing this route to
reduce their journey times by avoiding more congested routes, therefore
signing and lining may have minimal impact. Local users who are already
aware of the 20mph limit are also unlikely to change their habits due to
additional signing alone.

18. Providing traffic calming (Option 2) would have a greater impact on
vehicle speeds, however it is expensive and may be difficult to justify in
value for money terms. This option is also not affordable from the
2018/19 budget allocations. If the Executive Member favours the
progression of the traffic calming option, additional funding would need to
be allocated as the estimated cost of the option exceeds the current
budget available in the 2018/19 programme. The introduction of vertical



Page 43
- ANNEX A

traffic calming measures is also likely to be unpopular with local
residents.

19. The junction improvements could be undertaken without any of the
supporting measures of options 1 or 2. This reduces the required budget
to £16k but may only have limited impact close to the junction area. This
element of the scheme could be progressed and then monitored to
review the impact of the scheme. This review would then be shared with
the Speed Management Partnership for them to decide if further action is
required such as option 1 and 2.

Council Plan

20. This section explains how the proposals relate to the Council's 3 key
priorities, as set out in the Council’s Plan 2015-19.

Key Priority - a council that listens to residents - to ensure it delivers the
services they want and works in partnership with local communities.

The Speed Management Partnership is based solely on investigating
complaints from residents, all options presented include consultation with
local residents and their representatives to ensure their views are leading
the decisions made.

Implications
21. The following implications have been considered:

. Financial — The scheme costs of the recommended option have
been estimated at £16,000 including staff costs. This is affordable
from the safety schemes budget in the 18/19 capital programme.

« Human Resources (HR) - There are no HR implications.

One Planet Council / Equalities - There are no One Planet Council /
equalities implications.

« Legal - There are no legal implications.

. Crime and Disorder - There are no crime and disorder implications.

. Information Technology (IT) - There are no IT implications.

« Property - There are no property implications.



Page 44
: ANNEX A

Risk Management

22. In compliance with the Council's risk management strategy, the following
risks associated with the recommendation in this report have been
identified and described in the following points, and set out in the table
below:

23. Authority reputation —This risk is in connection with the public perception
of the Council if the recommended scheme doesn’t significantly reduce
speeds and is assessed at 8.

Risk Category |Impact | Likelihood | Score

Organisation/ | Minor | Unlikely 8
Reputation

24. ltis recognised that the Option 3 recommendation in the report may not
have a significant impact on vehicle speeds along the full length of the
road, however the other options could be introduced at a later date if
required.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Ben Potter Neil Ferris

Engineer Corporate Director - Economy and Place
Transport Projects

Tel No. 01904 553496 Report Date 05/09/18

Approved

Wards Affected: Heworth

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers
None



Page 45
‘ ANNEX A

Annexes to the report dated 13.09.18

Annex A — Option 1 - junction realignment and signing scheme
Annex B — Option 2 - junction realignment and traffic calming scheme
List of Abbreviations Used in this Report

CYC - City of York Council
SMP — Speed Management Partnership



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47

Bapyusubioay quay puv Bupy ‘Buufis - 1 uohda~arusay s\ 5B \aay \BL™ZIAH paads ¥ A303508 - 0N\3308(04g\9328('04g 3I0dSUD )\ | NINOOTNT

o33 104 usuens avo

(%2 NAOHS SY noog Guaaig
10Ld40-11004£1-d)

wmam ‘oN Buanig

o T pemonny 9271 NO N9IS N\
(l02-21-81_=wg A peen d31v3d3d
102 Jag mwq AY #q uanig

FUaWUBNDAY U3
puo Buju ‘Buubis
Bumnig

o

02, TIVLSNHh)
81/L1 SWS
ANUAAY puviduaH

: AN

=== |||} NOILdO _§¢

I i}

MUOA 2 .02, TIVISNIf >
‘ o
— SN\ 2
3 : |
o\ Tl ..‘ SN
< \ 3
2 D 99,
I [ NOIB LINM om_m_n_mv v €OTNONDIS
0&, ONILSIXI—F 47 ¥31v3ad3y
[ S e s e v 7 s oo o] N
SOHIHM ONIDA3 d3S0d0ud ;// / ‘ .\. -QN- l_l_<|_rw_4_
< [fTe o)
SE43IM NOILISN Y¥Ll 33S0d0¥d

NOILONNT
JHL 40 HINOW
ONIIVIN IHL MOYYVYN
73ANNOY _ oL 9435 IHL 40
0.0z, TIVLSNI ININNOITY I

o

ONIAYd 3T1LOV.L d3S0d0¥d ¢

ANNEX A to the report dated 13.09.18

SdWNH d33ds a3S040¥d

©
©
3 a. Il 2\
[ oo tesscnioveoves (WK | o~
(e T Ty ] [
=—= ez T ® g R
T Smmume T 5] el
5-
(=
@ : \
TOT3q UBR - 000T:T 2103§
TION | [ — == Mz WA AW A




Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49 _

(Igv -

Annex B to the report dated 13.09.18

u o
mmmmm
mmmmm
a = o w
= = o i3 z o
5] o = a o X
. w < w [= o
a 4 o o g g
MMMMMM
000000
mmmmmm
wwww
oooooo
mmmmmm
mmmmmm
oooooo
uuuuuu
oooooo
mmmmmm
uuuuuu

g
g
i
]

Eumu COPYRGHT.OMy of York os

i
1171
iR ]
2

# ;
g; i
id |3

I Scaole 1:500

N RANN NN NAH

<\ OPTION 2 f| fomwe

dwg

erue_option 2 - Road Humps and Kerb

_18\YKIS11000 Herpland Ave\Drowings\Hempland Av




Page 50

ANNEX A

Extract from Decisions document

Decision Session — Executive Member for Transport and Planning
Thursday, 13 September 2018

7. Hempland Avenue - Speed Management Scheme

Resolved: That the Executive Member approve Option 3, junction
realignment only, to progress the scheme to consultation with local
residents, ward members and other local interest groups and for
any objections to be reported back to a future Executive Member
for Transport and Planning Decision Session for a decision on
implementation.

Reason: To provide a suitable speed reduction measure which can
be monitored post implementation without introducing potentially
unpopular vertical traffic calming measures or extra sign clutter
within an existing 20mph limit.



Page 51 ANNEX B

ANNEXB

g CITY OF Economy and Place Directorate

I o R K West Offices
& COUNCIL Station Rise
York YOI 6GA

Our Ref: TP/170011/01
01 October 2018

Dear Resident,

Hempland Avenue Speed Management Scheme

Hempland Avenue is one of several sites at which concerns have been raised
regarding speeding. The site has been assessed through the Council and North
Yorkshire Police’s speed management process and has been identified as suitable
for engineering measures

Speed survey results indicate that mean speeds on the street are within the
recommended levels for a 20mph limit but the 85" percentile speeds (speed at or
below which 85 percent of people drive) are slightly higher than expected. This was
more of an issue for vehicles travelling in a westerly direction, i.e. from Hempland
Lane.

A review of the speeds and the street identified the main problem to be the width of
the junction with Hempland Lane. The carriageway width at this point is excessively
wide and the open space allows any vehicles approaching from Hempland Lane
(north) to turn in at speed with nothing to slow their entry speed. Additionally the wide
junction makes crossing difficult for pedestrians and has resulted in the existing
uncontrolled crossing point being installed away from the desire line.

To address these issues the Council are proposing to amend the junction mouth in
an attempt to reduce vehicle entry speeds. We are also proposing that the crossing
point is relocated to the desire line to reduce the crossing distance and improve
visibility for pedestrians. A plan showing the proposed scheme is provided overleaf.

If you would like to make any comments regarding these proposals, please submit
them to me no later than Monday 22"¢ October 2018, preferably in writing or by
email. Any objections to the scheme will be included in a report to the Executive
Member for Transport and Planning to help decide if the proposals should proceed.

Please note that any comments submitted should relate only to these proposals. Any
comments relating to highway issues at other locations will not be considered as part
of this consultation.

Regards,

Ben Potter
Engineer — Transport Projects

Corporate Director Economy and Place: Neil Ferris www.york.gov.uk


ddttsbp
Text Box
ANNEX B


NS o— A

X

L W W W WL ¥

B

A

LOCATION

\
\c\S
e 0\ MANRNTARF AR g e
) ‘\%‘}g\\a&‘ &‘ ;
/»‘(/I.

LAN

|PROPOSED ALTERATIONS TO JUNCTION |
L J

Footway and verge built out
to realign junction. To reduce
\ vehicle entry speeds onto
Hempland Avenue.

Crossing point relocated to
desire line. Reduces crossing
distance and improves
visibility.

EXTENTS OF FOOTWAY / VERGE BUILDOU

e

1 1 1 N 1 1 1\ 1\

| \\

\

KEY:-

PROPOSED TACTILE
PAVING

PROPOSED KERBLINE

. VERGE

VEHICLE CROSSING

FOOTWAY

|© CROWN COPYRIGHT.CHy of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

| CONSULTATION |

=) CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

E‘mlﬁ'ﬂwﬁ_“mm‘n

Project
Hempland Avenue
SMS 17/18

Drawing

Proposed Road Humps
and Kerb Realignment

Drawn by BP Date: Sept 18
Checksd by DM Dats: Sept 18
Authorised by Date:

Drawing No. Revislon
TP-170011-CONS-01 |
Drawing Scale: NTS A4
CAD Filename: Plot Scale:

2G abed

L\DOCUMENT\Transport ProjJects\ProJects\10 - Safety & Accesslblity Schemes\Speed management\17_18\YK1611000 Hempland Ave\Drawings\Hempland Avenue_Kerb Realignment Consultation.dwg

d XIANNV



AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
38a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
STOCKTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
OAKLAND AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
CHARLES MOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
HERBERTS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
HEMPLAND LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
Monk Stray House

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
FOREST GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
HEMPLAND AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
OAKLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
14.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
28b

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
HEMPLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
OAKLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
HEMPLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
24a

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
CHESTNUT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
LIME AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Drawn by

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
Checked by

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Plot Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
CAD Filename:

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
Drawing

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
By

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
Approved

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Transport Projects

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO11 3DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
www.york.gov.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
Drawing Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
Drawn by

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
Authorised by

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
Checked by

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
Drawing

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
A4

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Speed management\17_18\YK1611000 Hempland Ave\Drawings\Hempland Avenue_Kerb Realignment Consultation.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
CONSULTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
Hempland Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
SMS 17/18

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
Proposed Road Humps

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
and Kerb Realignment

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
BP

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
Sept 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
DM

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
Sept 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
TP-170011-CONS-01

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
NTS

ddttsbp_1
Text Box
ANNEX B


A\

16

Page 53

ANNEX B

i

2
/57
0

N Y
< > =
Y%
-0
s
Z
(=)
%
Z
3
) s
=\
CONSULTATION 5
D
o
BN
<< 9
S
<
\P/ Field Coyrt
X ——\
L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & i 17_18\YK1611000 H Ave\Drawings\t Avenue_Kerb Realignment Consultation.dwg
o~ | Hempland Ave SCATE NTS
YORK Speed Management Scheme DATE 13/08/2019
couNciL REV] AMENDMENTS DATE [DRAWN] DRAWN | B Potter

Transport Projects

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS TP/SMS/HA/CONS CHECK
www.york.gov.uk



AutoCAD SHX Text_202
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
Field Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
OAKLAND AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
HEMPLAND LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
OAKLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
HEMPLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
OAKLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
12


This page is intentionally left blank



Qs

ANN

Give way sign
relocated.

Carriageway
reprofiled to follow
| alignment of new

junction mouth.

1055 10,042
ST 10028~/
10151, x
152047 Y
10.045 %
10{07, /
10.1 // ®W+ swzs % 10078
.RS % 10108
/ %
Y4
A
Y

4
7 10.027

10.099

Existing kerb line
builtout to realign
junction to slow traffic.

—\

crossing relocated.

Uncontrolled pedestrian

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Speed management\17_18\YK1611000 Hempland Ave\Drawings\Construction\170011_GA Hempland Avenue GA.dwg

NOTES:

I ©CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818 I

CONSTRUCTION

GG abed

Revision | By |Checked|Approved | Date Description

COUNCIL

Transport Projects
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO11 3DS
www.york.gov.uk

Project

Speed Management Scheme
Hempland Avenue

Junction Realignment

Drawing

General Arrangement

Drawn by B Potter Date:
Checked by Date:
Authorised by Date:
Drawing No.

TP/170011/GA

Drawing Scale: NTS

CAD Filename: Plot Sq

J XINNVY



AutoCAD SHX Text_246
GU

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
GU

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
GT

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
CA

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
CA

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
GU

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
9.898

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
9.858

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
9.842

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
9.841

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
9.923

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
9.931

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
9.924

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
9.947

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
10.001

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
9.987

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
9.995

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
9.970

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
9.986

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
9.996

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
10.045

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
10.027

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
9.671

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
9.674

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
9.694

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
9.725

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
9.744

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
9.776

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
9.782

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
9.778

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
9.784

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
9.804

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
9.819

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
9.935

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
9.936

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
9.954

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
9.949

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
9.970

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
9.967

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
9.923

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
9.891

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
9.821

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
9.829

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
9.776

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
9.885

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
9.932

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
9.941

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
9.956

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
9.984

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
10.002

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
9.987

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
9.968

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
10.042

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
10.043

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
10.077

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
10.026

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
10.057

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
10.061

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
10.065

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
10.050

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
10.004

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
9.667

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
9.949

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
9.927

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
9.910

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
9.899

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
9.809

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
9.802

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
9.910

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
9.884

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
9.877

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
9.782

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
9.758

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
9.846

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
9.806

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
9.806

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
9.742

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
9.717

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
9.689

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
9.729

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
9.728

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
9.671

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
9.671

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
9.667

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
9.864

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
9.932

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
9.958

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
10.025

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
10.024

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
9.955

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
9.984

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
10.036

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
10.078

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
10.020

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
10.078

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
10.130

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
10.076

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
9.905

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
9.991

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
9.874

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
9.865

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
9.994

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
9.996

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
9.873

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
9.873

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
9.850

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
9.865

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
10.002

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
10.035

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
10.036

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
10.032

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
9.996

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
9.873

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
9.982

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
9.999

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
9.993

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
10.039

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
10.023

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
10.002

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
10.026

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
10.042

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
10.061

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
9.982

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
9.822

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
9.774

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
9.866

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
9.935

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
9.966

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
9.970

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
10.095

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
10.089

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
10.109

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
10.099

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
10.095

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
10.121

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
10.141

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
10.171

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
10.083

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
10.118

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
10.107

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
10.162

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
10.143

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
10.136

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
10.151

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
10.204

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
10.123

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
10.106

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
10.078

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
10.086

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
10.084

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
10.136

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
10.069

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
10.030

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
GU

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
A3

ddttsbp_2
Text Box
ANNEX C


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57 Agenda ltem 5

“ZX  citvY oF

YOR

& COUNCIL

Decision Session — Executive Member for Transport 19 September 2019
Report of Assistant Director Transport, Highways & Environment

Residents Parking Petitions: Bishopthorpe Road (part), Rectory
Gardens, Kilburn Road, Wellington/Gordon/Willis/Wolsey Streets,
Longfield Terrace (part), Lower Ebor Street (part) and the Revival Estate

Summary

1. To report the receipt of seven petitions and determine what action is
appropriate in each case.

Recommendation

2. ltis recommended that:

e Option 3 —Bishopthorpe Road (part) and Rectory Gardens - approve
the addition of these areas to the waiting list, but combine with the
consultation for Balmoral Terrace which is already on the waiting
list.

Reason: Because this will respond to the residents concerns over a
wider area in a more timely fashion.

e Option 3 —Kilburn Road - approve the addition of this area to the
residents parking waiting list and consider the extent of the potential
consultation area when it reaches the top of the list.

Reason: Because this will respond to residents concerns in the order
they are raised and can be progressed depending on funding
available each year.

e Option 3 — Wellington/Gordon/Willis/Wolsey Streets - approve the
addition of this area to the residents parking waiting list and
consider the extent of the potential consultation area when it
reaches the top of the list.

Reason: Because this will respond to residents concerns in the order
they are raised and can be progressed depending on funding
available each year.



Page 58

e Option 2 — Longfield Terrace and lower Ebor Street - approve the
advertising of extending the existing zones that surround these 2
small areas on the same terms as the existing schemes.

Reason: Because these small areas are entirely within existing zones
and the extension to those zones will be on the basis of the
existing restrictions and this has the potential to resolve this
matter is a more timely fashion.

e Option 3 —The Revival Estate - approve the addition of this area to
the residents parking waiting list.

Reason: Because this will respond to residents concerns in the order
they are raised and can be progressed depending on funding
available each year.

Background

Bishopthorpe Road (part) and Rectory Gardens - There are 53 and 21
signatures respectively on the petitions requesting that the streets
becomes residents parking zone. The petition front sheets are shown in
Annex A along with a plan showing the location and existing residents
parking zones. Because Balmoral Terrace (indicated on the plan) is
already on the waiting list it is suggested that these requests be
considered as a single item and that they be added to one or more of the
existing adjacent zones.

Kilourn Road — There are 48 signatures on the petition requesting the
area becomes a residents parking zone. The petition front sheet is shown
in Annex B along with a plan showing the location and existing residents
parking zones. Because Alma Terrace (indicated on the plan) is already
on the waiting list it is suggested that these two requests be considered
as a single item and that they be added to the existing adjacent zone R20

Wellington/Gordon/Willis/Wolsey Streets — There are 54 signatures on the
petition requesting the area becomes a residents parking zone. The
petition front sheet is shown in Annex C along with a plan showing the
location and existing residents parking zones. It is suggested that
consideration be given to expanding an existing residents parking zone to
include these streets plus any others in the immediate area if thought
appropriate when consultation takes place.

Longfield Terrace and Lower Ebor Street - There are 11 and 38
signatures respectively on the petitions requesting that these parts of
streets becomes residents parking zones. The petition front sheets are
shown in Annex D and E along with plans showing the location and
existing residents parking zones. These locations are oddly not part of the



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 59

existing residents parking zones that surround them. It is thought likely
that when the existing zones were introduced there must have a strong
representation made by the residents at that time to not be included. Time
has now moved on and it is appropriate to consider expanding the zones
to include these two small areas on the same conditions as the existing
zones.

Revival Estate — information has been provided (see Annex F, also
includes a plan of the area) to indicate there is a strong interest in taking a
residents parking scheme forward for the area.

There has been a flurry of interest in becoming part of a residents parking
zone in the last 2 to 3 years. This increase in demand has resulted in a
waiting list (see Annex G) for investigating new requests. The process
and likely timescales for investigating and implementing a scheme is also
outlined on the waiting list in Annex G. Each request will be investigated
in the order the request was made, except in unusual circumstances (as
indicated in Paragraph 6 above) or where 2 or more requests are adjacent
to one another and can be taken forward as one.

In addition, depending on circumstances at the time, the extent of the
consultation area may be extended beyond the area the petition came
from. However, if this is done we would still respect the majority view of
residents in the extended area before recommending to take a scheme
forward or not for those residents.

Because of the increased desire to become part of the residents parking
system additional funding of £30k has been made available to progress
the backlog of requests.

Options for Consideration

Option 1 — Note a petition but take no action. This is not the
recommended action for any of the petitions because it does not address
the residents concerns.

Option 2 — Approve a formal traffic regulation order consultation where the
petition area is within an existing zone and the restrictions would be
consistent with the existing zone, making the usual initial consultation not
required. This is a recommended option because it has the potential to
speed up the resolution of the concerns raised by residents without
unduly affecting the progress of other items on the waiting list.

Option 3 — Approve the addition of the street/area to the waiting list and
investigate the possibility of expanding the existing adjacent zone to
incorporate the new street/area when it reaches the top of the waiting list.



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 60

This is a recommended option because it is consistent with the approach
taken when we have a waiting list due to more requests than resources.

Option 4 — Approve the start of the consultation process for these
requests ahead of those already on the waiting list. This is not a
recommended option because it would not be seen as fair or reasonable
by those already on the waiting list.

Consultation

If option 2 is approved then the formal legal Traffic Regulation Order
consultation will be carried out.

If option 3 is approved there is no consultation until the areas reach the
top of the waiting list then there will be a 2 stage consultation process.
Firstly, information on how a scheme operates is sent out to all properties
together with a questionnaire, the results of which are reported back to an
Executive Member meeting for a decision on how to proceed. If approval
to proceed is granted then the formal legal Traffic Regulation Order
consultation is carried out.

Council Plan

The above proposal contributes to the City Council’s draft Council Plan of:
e A prosperous city for all,
e A council that listens to residents

Implications

This report has the following implications:

Financial — None.

Human Resources — None

Equalities — None.

Legal — before a residents parking scheme can be implemented the
correct legal procedure has to be gone through.

Crime and Disorder — None
Information Technology - None
Land — None

Other — None



Risk Management

19. None.

Contact Details

Authors:

Alistair Briggs
Traffic Team Leader
Dept. Transport

Tel: (01904) 551368

Page 61

Chief Officer Responsible for the report:

James Gilchrist

Assistant Director for Transport, Highways &
Environment

Date: 6 September 2019

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

None.

Wards Affected: Clifton, Dringhouses & Woodthorpe,

Micklegate, Fishergate,

For further information please contact the author of the report.

Background Papers: None.

Annexes:

Annex A Bishopthorpe Road (part) and Rectory Gardens petition front sheets

and location plans.

Annex B Kilburn Road petition front sheet and location plan.

Annex C Wellington/Gordon/Willis/Wolsey Streets petition front sheet and

location plan.

Annex D Longfield Terrace (part) petition front sheet and location plan.

Annex E Lower Ebor Street petition front sheet and location plan.

Annex F Revival Estate information and location plan.

Annex G Residents parking waiting list.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63
Annex A

Bishopthorpe Road (part) and Rectory Gardens Petition Front Sheets

Petition to:

City of York Council

Petition Summary and
Background

Since the introduction of additional “Residents Priority Parking Schemes” In adjacent
streets along Bishopthorpe Road, and new residents have moved into properties in
The Chocolate Works development (where parking is limited).

We as residents on Bishopthorpe Road between Beresford Terrace to Reginald Grove
(even number side) and Balmoral Terrace to Campleshon Road (odd number side) find
it impossible to find any parking spaces at all times of day. Adding to this problem we
are witnessing vehicles being parked all day with owners walking over the Millennium
Bridge to work etc.

Action Required

Therefore we the undersigned are petitioning for a “Residents Priority Parking
Scheme” to be introduced on Bishopthorpe Road between Beresford Terrance to
Reginald Grove (including properties 230 — 270) and Balmoral Terrace to Campleshon
Road {including properties 177 — 211). And our Petition to be included in the Balmoral
Terrace consultation as each has a direct affect on the other. Also we respectfully
request that both sides of our section of road be included in {R58) zone, giving us
some flexibility accommodating patients parking needs at South Bank Medical Centre

located on the corner of Bishopthorpe Road and Balmoral Terrace.

Name - Printed

Name - Signed

Comments [

Address

L -3 E

AN A

— | G

YorkiELabour

York Labour Party — Public Consultation for the introduction of Residents Priority Parking Petition.
We the undersigned are in favour of CYC carrying out a formal consultation for the introduction of residents priority parking in Rectory Gardens

NAME
(please print)

Please tick the box if you are
wanting to receive updates
regarding this issue

" Address POSTCODE




Page 64
Annex A

Bishopthorpe Road (part) and Rectory Gardens Plan

ﬁﬂ@\\ﬂ]ﬁ?ﬁ s } %ﬂﬁ

fﬂ T = i

|

gy

A
Ji'im

3
:<

TS
rl

AL
H il




Page 65

Annex B

Kilburn Road Petition Front Sheet

PETITION: RESIDENTS PARKING

We call for the introduction of a ‘residents only’ scheme for Kilburn Road to stop commuter
parking outside our homes. This could get worse as a consequence of Frederick House
redevelopment for student accommodation,

Name Address

Kilburn Road Location Plan




This page is intentionally left blank



Wi,
iti - - P2
Petition: Residents Parking Tk

Page 67

Annex C
Wellington/Gordon/Willis/Wolsey Streets Petition Front Sheet
Green Party

or the common

oo

We call for the introduction of a ‘residents only’ parking scheme for Wellington, Gordon,
Willis and Wolseley Streets to stop commuter parking outside our homes.

(NB. Rules now allow a zone approach, without marked based or the loss of parking spaces. A council run ballot of
every household would take place before any decision to introduce regulations. Residents without a car can vote and
are allowed to buy daily visitor permits as required).

Name Address EMAIL OR PHONE NUMBER * York
Greens
for
2019?*
Wellington/Gordon/Willis/Wolsey Streets Plan
ﬁ EI'

¥
5 .5 .
"

2

-

mg?&é?\/ @ SEY
=
S




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69

Annex D

Longfield Terrace Petition Front Sheet

To owners and residents of 1 to 19 Longfield Terrace.
23 January 2019
Residents Parking

As you know the stretch of road between numbers 1 and 19 Longfield Terrace is not included
in the surrounding residents parking zone (ResPark Zone 33), which covers all the streets
south of Bootham and west of the railway. The result of this is that a number of non-
residents, including some who live in other streets in the ResPark 33 area and do not pay for
permits, use the road to park in daily, or in some cases, for longer periods. This has the knock
on effect of making it difficult for residents or their visitors to park and for deliveries and
tradesmen working here.

To ease this situation it has been suggested that we approach City of York Council in order to
get this part of Longfield Terrace included in the residents parking zone. This would have
two advantages; it would reduce the number of vehicles parked in the road and it would give
residents the opportunity of parking legally further down Longfield Terrace or in Sycamore
Terrace if necessary. Residents would have to pay for a parking permit, at present this is
equivalent to less than £2 per week for a single car. Details of the scheme, including the
charges, are on the Council’s website and can be found at:

york.gov.uk/info/20102/parking _permits/1387/residents_priority _parking_scheme_respark

Before we think about approaching the Council it would be useful to know the feelings of the
residents and owners who would be affected by the implementation of residents parking.
Would you please indicate your views below and return to:

Please
~ Tick
1/we would be in favour of this part of Longfield Terrace being included in the /
residents parking zone.

I/we would be against of this part of Longfield Terrace being included in the
residents parking zone.

I/we have no opinion about residents parking in Longfield Terrace

Please put any additional comments and your name and house number below.



Page 70

Annex D

Yes No No Opinion | No Reply Comments
v
v
v
v
HMO v

Concerned about costs, but moving out
v June 2019

v Happy at present, but may get second car
v
Parking at rear, difficult access - people
v parking across lane
v
v
v Concerned about cost
Guest House v
W Same concerns as expressed in letter
v
11 1




Page 71

Longfield Terrace Location Plan




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 73
Annex E

Lower Ebor Street Petition Front Sheet

Re: Petition for ResPark Scheme - Lower Ebor Street

Please find enclosed a petition signed by residents of Lower Ebor Street in
support of implementing a 24 hour ResPark Scheme to prevent inconsiderate

parking by non residents.

There are 58 properties affected by parking, this does not include residents of 1
& 6 The Maltings who have access to a residents car park and R32 parking on
Lower Darnborough St. The majority of households have now signed the
petition, and we would appreciate you adding it to your report for consideration
as soon as possible.

Any assistance you are able to provide to expedite this request along with
additional signage to prevent caravans from accessing the street, would be
greatly appreciated.

Parking - Lower Ebor Street
Petition to City of York Council — Network management

We, the undersigned petition the Council to implement a Residents’ Priority Parking
Scheme (ResPark) for permit parking on Lower Ebor Street due to problems associated with
inconsiderate parking due to high levels of non- resident parking

Name | Address Signature

- = —— -




Page 74
Annex E

Lower Ebor Street Plan

==

’ :;:fl\i\\ "li-'._' | , ,
= e .




Page 75
Annex F

Revival Estate Information

I am writing on behalf of the Revival Residents Community Association {Tadcaster Road, YO24) to request
the City of York Council to take immediate action in order to resolve the acute safety and access concerns
on the Revival Estate.

Background: For the past few years we have been experiencing increasing access, traffic and parking
issues caused by the students from York College who treat the Revival Estate as a carpark, due to (1) being
banned from parking within the College grounds in the first year after passing their driving test and (2)
avoiding to pay any parking fees. We note that the streets in the immediate neighbourhood of York College,
e.g. Chessingham Gardens and The Grove are completely double yellow lined, thus rendering the Revival
Estate as the location with highest proximity that could offer a cost-free “solution’ to their parking need.

So far, there have been two reported accidents by student drivers resulting in damage to vehicles and
property, but luckily se far no one has been injured. There have also been several sightings of students
driving recklessly and racing each other around the estate.

The current parking situation during the daytime causes danger and inconvenience to residents when trying
to access their homes, significantly increases the volume of estate traffic, creates access issues for delivery
vehicles and poses a worrying safety risk if the need arose for emergency vehicles (such as fire engines) to
access the estate, since double parking is a common occurrence.

Estate Action:

In order to tackle these problems and arrive at potential solutions, we formed an estate parking group and
discussed our issues at length, both with the College and with the Council. We explored various avenues,
e.g. the use of the old Askham Bar Park & Ride site, increasing the number of parking spaces at the college
and other free parking options for students. It appears that the only way we can resolve this particular safety
issue is to implement some form of Residents Parking Permit Scheme and Speed Restriction.

Proposed solution:

We propose to implement a Residents Parking Permit Scheme and a Restricted Speed Limit to 20mph, such
as those operating in many areas of York. Our preferred option would be a scheme that would only operate
on weekdayvs during 10am - 3pm, 1st January - 10th July and 5th September - 20th December.

Overwhelming resident support for the proposed solution:

As advised by Cllr Stephen Fenton, we have conducted an opinion survey to investigate the resident support
for (1) a Residents Parking Permit Scheme and (2) a reduction in speed limit to 20mph. Attached please find
a copy of the letter and survey that were sent to all residents. 1 also attach a list of the names who are in
favour of the proposals.

Specifically, responses are included from houses on Principal Rise, Academy Drive, College Court, Bursary
Court, Chancellor Grove and Teachers Close, with 145 households responding (out of 222). This equates to
an overall response rate of over 65%, with streets such as Bursary Court whose residents have to drive the
entire depth of the estate, exceeding a 90% response rate. Of those who responded, over 90% are in favour
of both a Residents Parking Permit Scheme and a restricted speed limit to 20mph. This effectively means
that overall, over 60% of residents are in favour of a Residents Permit Parking Scheme and 64% are in
favour to have the speed limit on the estate reduced to 20mph, with signs at the entrance of the estate to
show this. N.B.: Whilst the flats on Scholars Court and Master Mews were administered this survey, their
responses are not included in the statistics above, as only 5% responded due to them already having their
own parking permit system, which would continue to operate and be separate from this.



Page 76
Annex F

Cllr Fenton, with the guidance from Alistair Briggs, has informed us that our proposed permit restrictions
are indeed acceptable and that we need 25% of households (e.g. 50% response rate and 25% of those
supportive) to be in favour of this proposal in order to proceed with the council.

Council Action:

With overwhelming evidence that the majority of homeowners on the Revival Estate are in favour of a
Residents Parking Permit Scheme and Restricted Speed Limit to 20mph, we now urge the City of York
Council to take the next steps to put these proposals in place. We would appreciate it if it possible to have
the speed limit reduction implemented ASAP for safety reasons.

The Revival Estate is a residential estate and the Council can protect the safety of our children, and
ourselves, by immediately and effectively taking action.

Our parking group would also be happy to meet in person if required for this action to proceed.

Revival Estate Plan




Page 77
Annex G

Residents Parking Waiting List
Residents parking schemes are dealt with in order of when they are received.
The number of schemes introduced per year depends on funding and other
workload priorities.

Process Approximate timescale

Stage 1 — initiation
The request (normally by petition) indicating 8 weeks
significant support in an area or street is reported for
either approval to take forward or refuse.

If approved, when the potential scheme reaches the top of the waiting list
work begins.

The time between stage 1 and 2 varies significantly depending on the length of
the waiting list. Once stage 2 begins a residents parking zone will normally take
around 9 months to complete.
Stage 2 — start of project

A draft scheme and questionnaire will be sent outto | 6 —8 weeks
all properties within the proposed area. A proposal
will normally be taken forward if there is at least a
50% response rate and the majority of returns are in
favour. Depending on circumstances, there is
potential for individual streets to go forward from an

area if the streets return is very positive whilst the 8 weeks
areas is either low or opposed.
The consultation is then reported along with a 4 - 6 weeks

proposed scheme for approval to advertise a Traffic 8 weeks
Regulation Order (TRO).
TRO preparation and advertising 12 - 15 weeks
Any objections to the proposed TRO are then
reported for consideration.

If the objections are overturned the scheme will then
be implemented.




Page 78

Annex G
Waiting List
Area Date Progress
received (NOTE: not all will get through to
implementation)
Danesmead estate April Reported Yes
2017 | Consultation carried out | Yes
Consultation report Oct
TRO advertised Yes
Objections report June
Implemented/dropped Sept.
Fulford Cross April Reported Yes
2017 Consultation carried out | Yes
Deferred until land issues Consultation report Yes
resolved TRO advertised deferred
Intention will be to re-join it Objections report
to the Danesmead scheme. Implemented/dropped
Clifton Dale June Reported Yes
2017 Consultation carried out | Yes
Consultation report Oct
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped
Pasture Farm Close Sept. Reported Yes
2017 Consultation carried out | Yes
Consultation report Oct
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped
Albemarle Road (15-37) Jan Reported Yes
2018 Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped
Main Avenue, First Avenue May. Reported Yes
and Second Avenue 2018 Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped




Page 79

Annex G
Balmoral Terrace June. Reported Yes
2018 | Consultation carried out
May need to consider Consultation report
Bishopthorpe Road at the TRO advertised
same time Objections report
Implemented/dropped
Farrar Street Nov. Reported Yes
2018 Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped
Windmill Gates Dec. Reported Yes
2018 | Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped
Alma Terr. (part) / Alma Nov. Reported Yes
Grove 2018 | Consultation carried out
Also several requests from Consultation report
end of the street not TRO advertised
petitioned. Objections report
Implemented/dropped
Slingsby Grove Dec. Reported Yes
2018 Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped
Bishopthorpe Road Feb. Reported
Inc properties S of Reg. Gr. 2019 Consultation carried out
May be considered at the Consultation report
same time as Balmoral TRO advertised
Terrace Objections report
Implemented/dropped
Rectory Gardens May Reported
2019 Consultation carried out

May be considered at the
same time as Balmoral
Terrace

Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped




Page 80

Annex G

Kilburn Road

May
2019

Reported

Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped

Wellington, Gordon, Willis
and Wolsley Streets

May
2019

Reported

Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped

Longfield Terrace

May
2019

Reported

Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped

Lower Ebor Street

June
2019

Reported

Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped

Revival estate

June
2019

Reported

Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped

Completed Residents Parking Requests 2016 Onwards

Area Date Finished
received
South Bank Avenue Petition Summer | Implemented Yes
2016
Butcher Terrace area Petition | Summer | Implemented Yes
2016
Phoenix Boulevard Petition Summer | Implemented Yes

2016




Page 81

Annex G
Railway Terrace / St Paul’s Summer | Implemented Yes
area Petition 2016
St. Aubyn’s Place February | Implemented Yes
2017
St. John’s Place and Chestnut | August |- NO
Court 2017 ACTION
Sussex Road petition May - NO
2017 ACTION
Broadway / Westmorland Sept. - NO
Drive 2017 ACTION
Rosedale Street April Implemented April ‘19
2017




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Cycle Route Winter Treatment Pilot
	Annex A
	Annex B

	4 Hempland Avenue Speed Management Scheme - Update
	ANNEX A
	ANNEX B
	Sheets and Views
	A4 consult plan

	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	ANNEX C
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	5 Residents Parking Petitions: Bishopthorpe Road (part), Rectory Gardens, Kilburn Road, Wellington/Gordon/Willis/Wolsey Streets, Longfield Terrace (part), Lower Ebor Street (part) and the Revival Estate
	Annex A - Residents Parking
	Annex B - Residents Parking
	Annex C - Residents Parking
	Annex D - Residents Parking
	Annex E - Residents Parking
	Annex F - Residents Parking
	Annex G - Residents Parking




